ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 27, 2016
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Berta Gardner

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
Representative Wes Kel ler, Chair
Representative Liz Vazquez, Vice Chair
Representati ve Ji m Col ver
Representati ve Paul Seaton
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Harriet Drunmond
Representati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
Senat or Cathy G esse

HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQG SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Lora Rei nbold
Representative Lynn Gattis

Representative Sam Kito

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON: ALASKA NATIVE SC ENCE & ENG NEERI NG ( ANSEP)
ALASKA MEASURES OF PROCRESS ( AMP) REPORTI NG

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -1- January 27, 2016



- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

HERB SCHROEDER, Ph.D., Vice Provost

Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program ( ANSEP)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented i nformati on on ANSEP

M KE BOURDUKCFSKY, Chief Operations Oficer

Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program ( ANSEP)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on ANSEP

LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Executive Director

Al aska Council| of School Adm nistration (ACSA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the Al aska
of Progress (AWP).

M CHAEL JOHNSQN, President

Al aska Council| of School Adm nistrators

Superi nt endent

Copper River School District

d ennal | en, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

DEENA PARAMD, Superi nt endent

Mat - Su Bor ough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

CHRI S REI TAN, Superi ntendent

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

SUE JOHNSQN, Superi nt endent
Kuspuk School District

Measur es
of the
of the
of the

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 2- January 27, 2016



Ani ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

KEVI N SHI PLEY, Superi ntendent,

Kake School District

Kake, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

DAVE HERBERT, Superi ntendent

St. Mary's School District

St. Mary's, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

BOB CRUMLEY, Superintendent

Chugach School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

ED GRAFF, Superi nt endent

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

STEWART MCDONALD, Superi ntendent

Kodi ak | sl and Borough School

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AW).

DAVI D NEES, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

M KE HANLEY, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information on the Al aska Measures
of Progress (AWP).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 3- January 27, 2016



8:00: 02 AM

CHAIR M KE DUNLEAVY called the joint neeting of the Senate and
House Education Standing Commttees to order at 8:00 a.m
Present at the call to order were Senators Huggins, Stevens,
Gar dner, and Chair Dunl eavy, and Representatives Seaton,
Vazquez, Colver, Kreiss-Tonkins, Talerico, and Chair Keller.
Representative Drummond arrived shortly thereafter

Presentati on: Al aska Native Science & Engi neering Program
ANSEP

8:01:41 AM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced that the first order of business would
be a presentation on Alaska Native Science & Engineering
(ANSEP), followed by a presentation on Al aska Measures of
Progress (AMP).

8:01:46 AM

HERB SCHROEDER, Ph.D., Vice Provost, Alaska Native Science &
Engi neeri ng Program (ANSEP), presented information on ANSEP. He
said that he started ANSEP 21 years ago. He introduced M ke
Bour dukof sky, who graduated from ANSEP as a civil engineer in
2003.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY not ed the presence of Representative Drunmond.

DR. SCHRCEDER showed a short video on ANSEP that portrayed
students who were successful in the program

8:03:35 AM

M KE BOURDUKOFSKY, Chief Operations Oficer, Alaska Native
Sci ence & Engineering Program (ANSEP), presented information on
ANSEP. He described the conponents of ANSEP. Mddle School
Acadeny, STEM Career Explorations, Acceleration Acadeny, Sunmer
Bridge for incomng university freshnen, and University Success.
At the mddle school level, 54 students are brought to the ANSEP
canpus every year and participate in career exploration. As they
transition to high school, they can begin to take college
courses. Hi gh school graduates getting ready to go to college
participate in the Sumer Bridge program an internship
opportunity wth science and engineering partners. At the
university, students are supported in their pursuit of a science
or engi neering degree.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY referred to a booklet devel oped by the Urban
Institute after an eval uati on of ANSEP

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -4- January 27, 2016



8:04:53 AM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted the presence of Representatives Gattis,
Rei nbol d, and Kito.

8:05:13 AM
MR. BOURDUKOFSKY pointed out that one of the ANSEP netrics
neasured at the mddle school level is Algebra | conpletion

rate. He showed a graph depicting 77 percent of students passing
Al gebra | or higher by the end of 8th grade. By conparison, 26
percent of all student nationally conplete Algebra |I by the end
of 8th grade. At the high school acceleration acadeny |evel, 95
percent of students advance one level or nore in math or science
over a five-week period each summer. He said over 90 percent of
Summer Bridge students are successfully transitioning to science
or engineering BS degree prograns at the University of Al aska.
At the university level ANSEP has a retention rate (on track to
graduate) and graduation rate of 75 percent.

8:06: 29 AM

DR. SCHROEDER reported that ANSEP initiated an acceleration
acadeny in 2009 and a mddle school acadeny in 2010. Students
who went through the middle school academy and the accel eration
acadeny, graduate from high school a full year early and are
prepared to conplete a «civil engineering degree at the
university. It puts themin the top one-tenth of one percent of
all students in the world.

He said that |ast sunmer 120 students went through the program
which initiated the idea of what could be done if ANSEP had its
own high school. He discussed the idea of turning M. Edgecunbe
into an ANSEP acceleration high school wusing a three-year
curriculum He showed a graph that depicted graduation results
and cost per students graduating from a regular high school
versus an ANSEP high school. He noted the savings of a three
year program - nearly $6 mllion in annual savings to the state
by serving 400 students each year. He pointed out that the
student's famly would save the expense of a year of college,
al so.

8:09:16 AM

DR. SCHROEDER rel ated UAA President Jim Johnsen's opinion that a
full time acceleration high school has nerit and is worthy of a
serious study. He said President Johnsen intends to initiate a
year-long study of its feasibility. Dr. Schroeder stressed that
an acceleration high school would inprove the quality of
education in the state and save noney. He further described a

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 5- January 27, 2016



plan to take this nodel into hub comrunities in order to serve
rural Al aska students. He noted a zero fiscal note and a savi ngs
over tinme. He suggested that a 2,000 student school in Anchorage
woul d save even nore.

8:11: 54 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COLVER asked if the new program would suppl ant
exi sting M. Edgecunbe students.

DR. SCHRCEDER said no. He described how the acceleration high
school would work with a gradual set up. He noted that it would
br oaden opportunities for students.

8:13: 02 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if after three years the students would
transition to the UAA canpus.

DR. SCHRCEDER sai d yes.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if it was appropriate for self-selected
students, nom nated students, or all students. She asked if
current M. Edgecunbe students would join in the accelerated
program

DR. SCHROEDER said yes. He explained the selection process would
continue as it is; picking the best students that are avail abl e.

SENATOR GARDNER asked whether all students could participate at
the acceleration level. She inquired about the current selection
process of ANSEP m ddl e school acadeny students.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY replied that anyone who has the math background
could be placed - any student who has conpleted Al gebra |I. They
would then take internediate al gebra, coll ege al gebra,
trigononmetry, and cal cul us.

8:15: 54 AM

DR. SCHROEDER said ANSEP' s goal is to raise the bar in K-12
education. He gave an exanple of a mddle school in Bethel that
revised its curriculum so their students could conplete Al gebra
|. He noted that many other districts have done the sane.

8:16: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked about the chronology of
ANSEP' s conversations with M. Edgecunbe and the |egislature.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 6- January 27, 2016



DR. SCHROEDER recalled his recent discussions with |egislators
and Native | eaders, and with Conmm ssioner Hanley and
Superintendent Hutton from M. Edgecunbe. He said he has offered
to explain the plan in Sitka.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked what the comrunity thinks
about the plan.

DR. SCHRCEDER said no one has voiced opposition so far. He said
sone are worried about maintaining what M. Edgecunbe has, but
he declared that M. Edgecunbe woul d becone the best high school
in the whole nation within four or five years.

8.18: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted M. Edgecunbe selects the best
students avail able. He asked if a new selection process would be
used for an accel erated hi gh school program

DR. SCHRCEDER said that over tinme he would like to see every
m ddl e school in the state offer Algebra |I. He shared statistics
t hat show t hat renediation at high school is a national problem

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a different group of students
woul d repl ace those who now attend M. Edgecunbe.

DR. SCHRCEDER assured that they would be the sanme students. He
poi nted out that ANSEP works with students from 96 conmunities.

8:21:14 AM
At ease

8:21:43 AM

SENATOR GARDNER questioned whether the best students were
selected for M. Edgecunbe currently. She recalled that there
were students fromthe Ofice of Children's Services who had to
be renoved fromtheir homes and so boarded at M. Edgecunbe.

DR. SCHRCEDER said those soci al referrals would still be
i ncl uded.
8:23: 01 AM

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted it would be an ongoing discussion. He
suggested conmittee nmenbers have further conversations regarding
ANSEP

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the rate of ANSEP students
attending col |l ege having to take renedi ati on courses.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -7 January 27, 2016



DR. SCHRCEDER sai d none required renedi ati on.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY further explained that all students would have
taken all the prerequisites for freshman |level math for the
science and engineering progranms. Mst wuld be ready for
cal cul us-1 evel courses.

DR. SCHRCEDER said in the past, students have not had the
opportunity to take accel erated cl asses. He gave an exanple of a
sevent een-year-old student from Cantwell, Al aska, who recently
enrolled at UAMA with all his nmath conpl et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON spoke of the Alaska Scholars Program
which are the top ten percent of high school graduates, having
to take developnental courses in college. He asked if ANSEP
students need renedi ati on English cl asses.

DR. SCHRCEDER said they did not, and spoke of how the program
soci al i zes ANSEP students before they get to the coll ege canpus.

8:26:37 AM

SENATOR GARDNER stated that she sees ANSEP as an exciting
concept and a denonstration project with the possibility of
building a cadre of highly effective teachers. She suggested it
could be transformative for the entire education system

DR. SCHRCEDER descri bed how students who have conpl eted courses,
work with students who have not. They are already experiencing
"teaching” and may deci de to becone teachers.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY saw it as an interesting nentoring project,
simlar to a teacher nentoring program for potential Al aska
teachers, such as in Lake & Peninsula School District that
recruits students to be classroom aides first, and then hires
them as teachers. He suggested that ANSEP has increased the
probability of nore Al aska Native teachers.

DR.  SCHROEDER agreed. He gave several exanples of ANSEP
graduat es who becane teachers.

8:29: 01 AM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY wi shed to see the statistics on fenmale enroll ees
and graduates in ANSEP

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 8- January 27, 2016



DR. SCHRCEDER referred to the denographic report on page seven
of the Urban Institute's booklet on "Building Al aska's Science
and Engi neering Pipeline.”

SENATOR STEVENS expressed excitenent about ANSEP because it has
the opportunity to raise the bar in education. He pointed out
that change is hard and the establishment nay have difficulty
wi th the concepts.

8:30: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND sai d acceleration is not a new concept.
She spoke of her experience in the Bronx H gh School of Science,
a public high school in New York City. She noted other science
and math prep schools where 99 percent of graduates went to
col |l ege. She al so expressed excitenent about ANSEP

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how many students are currently
enrol | ed.

DR. SCHRCEDER said there were nore than 1,500 students from 6th
grade through doctoral prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked what road map M. Schroeder
foll owed to devel op the program

DR. SCHROEDER provi ded his background of working for the federal
government in 1994 on sanitation research in rural comunities.
He noted the poor conmunication between the public health
service and the communities. As a professor at the university,
he started an engi neering program for Al aska Natives in order to
i nprove the comunication. He stated that he had no idea what he
was getting into and there were nmany problens, but he persisted
by changi ng the approach to educati on.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ referred to ANSEP 8th grade nmath

conpletion data in 2009 and asked if there is nore recent
i nformation.

DR. SCHRCEDER said current statistics have not changed since
20009.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how ANSEP conpares to Al aska
nunbers for Al gebra | conpletion rates.

DR. SCHROEDER thought that only 10 percent of Al aska students
had conpleted Algebra | by the end of eighth grade and it was

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -9- January 27, 2016



lower than that for Alaska Native students. He offered to
provi de data on Al aska students.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said it would be interesting to see that.
DR. SCHRCEDER noted it was | ower than 26 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked what ANSEP's budget was for the
| ast two years and how nuch was federal and state nonies.

DR. SCHROEDER descri bed the current budget at between $5 million
and $6 million. Mre than 40 percent is from philanthropic funds
and some cones from contracts with the Fish and Wldlife
Service, Forest Service, and the Bureau of Land Managenent;
federal agencies who want to enploy ANSEP students. There is
about $1 nmillion from the Department of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED), and about $1 million from UAA. He noted that
the bulk of the funding is not from general funds.

8:35:44 AM
REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked for the average cl ass size.

DR. SCHRCEDER replied that they work with units of 54 students
in mddle school and it varies with the acceleration program
whi ch had 120 students |ast sumer.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ inquired how many ANSEP graduates go to
UAA.

DR. SCHROEDER said alnost all students stay in Alaska - 99
percent. Last year everybody attended UAA

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked for details about entrance criteria
per grade.

8:37:25 AM

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY explained that the criteria is different at
each level. At the mddle school level, students submt a
transcript, test scores, a recommendation letter, and an essay
and are neasured against all applicants. They nust also be
students who are on track to finish Algebra | by the end of

eighth grade. Hi gh school applicants nust test into college
|l evel math, internmediate algebra, and science courses that are
offered. At the college level there is no academc review
process after they are enrolled at UAA

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked what ANSEFP' s acceptance rate is.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 10- January 27, 2016



DR. SCHRCEDER replied that there are way nore who apply than
ANSEP can accept. He pointed out that they do not have the
financial resources to accept nore.

MR. BOURDUKOFSKY added that about half who apply are accepted
He said that at the university level all students who apply are
accepted into ANSEP. Last summer there were about 500 ANSEP
students on canpus.

DR. SCHROEDER spoke of the letter sent to students who are not
accepted. It details what they have to do to be accepted the
next time.

8:40: 25 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the year-round boarding school
concept will change anything about who will apply.

DR. SCHOREDER said no. He predicted that the students would be
excited about it.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired if students who are currently at
boardi ng school s participate in ANSEP

DR. SCHROEDER sai d they have had students from M. Edgecunbe and
from Glina

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ requested a breakdown on where ANSEP
students come from

DR. SCHROEDER agreed to provide that information. He said
students cone from96 different conmmunities.

8:42: 01 AM

CHAIR KELLER agreed that it was an exciting opportunity. He
chal lenged the conmmttees to consider witing a bill on the
pr ogram

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ said the program is exciting. She w shed
to see a simlar program for non-Native students.

DR. SCHROEDER said everyone is welconme to ANSEP. He predicted
that nmany parents in the state are going to want this
opportunity. He stated that ANSEP is about raising the bar for
the state. He opined that once that happens, the philanthropic
nmoney will flow into the state fromall over. He said that ANSEP
has raised nore than $40 mllion to support its work.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -11- January 27, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ thanked Dr. Schroeder for raising the
bar .

8:44. 00 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS thanked Dr. Schroeder for his work. He asked
what the key inplenentation study finding related to the "tense
climate" at UAA was about.

DR. SCHRCEDER expl ained that a year-and-a-half ago the
at nosphere at the university was tense because there were people
in the system who were fearful about |osing funding because of
ANSEP. Currently at UAA there is a very supportive

adm nistration, but there are still those in the system that
don't appreciate potential. There also used to be overt racism
whi ch has | essened, but is still present.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted the WMat-Su School District has an
accel erated program where high school students can take college
prep and college courses. He asked if Dr. Schroeder has worked
wi th other schools on the ANSEP nodel .

DR. SCHRCEDER said he works well with the Mit-Su program and
poi nted out that both prograns face the sane chall enges.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ referred to page 11 of the Urban
Institute's booklet and asked about "careful sustainability
pl anni ng. "

DR. SCHROEDER stated that careful sustainability planning wll
be crucial to ANSEFP's long-term success. He said ANSEP
recogni zed sustainability as a problem years ago so it devel oped
nine key sustainability goals, which all have been net. One of
the goals that was net this year was to have Alaska Native
instructors on university faculty or in nmasters prograns, SO
there is a cadre of |eaders in ANSEP goi ng forward.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ conplinmented Dr. Schroeder and read a
finding that stated, "ANSEP has benefited from a charismatic
| eader whose personality is central to the program”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON spoke of ANSEP as key to success in rura
Al aska. He suggested that the proposed ANSEP boarding school
program woul d meet Every  Student Succeeds  Act (ESSA)
requi renents, such as every student nust have access to advanced
courses. He suggested to | ook at the success of this program and

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -12- January 27, 2016



ot her acceleration prograns for the betternment of rural Al aska.
He spoke in favor of giving ANSEP the ability to grow.

8:50: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked about a statenment in the bookl et
that tal ks about program expansion to additional wuniversity
canpuses and schools and the operational challenges, such as
staffing and facilities.

DR. SCHROEDER said it nmeans, "W don't have enough noney." ANSEP
is only limted by the ampunt of resources avail able. He pointed
out that the staff of ANSEP consists of eight people.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked what woul d be the optinmal budget.

DR. SCHRCEDER responded that it would be enough to take the
programto the whole state and woul d be cost effective.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how nuch noney would be needed for
t hat .

DR. SCHROEDER said he has no idea and has to take it one piece
at a tine.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how nuch would be needed for the
M . Edgecumnbe program

DR. SCHRCEDER shared how a successful M. Edgecunbe would take
some pressure away from the university, by preparing students
before they enroll. He stated that he would need no new funds at
this point.

8:53:33 AM
REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked for the coll ege graduation rate.

DR. SCHRCEDER said since 2010, 75 percent of ANSEP college
enrol |l ees have graduated or are still enrolled in the program
The national average is nowhere near that. For regular Native
enrollees, it is below 30 percent.

SENATOR HUGAE NS asked about three things Dr. Schroeder would do
if ANSEP was fully funded.

DR. SCHRCEDER replied that he would build the accel eration high
school, make mddle school academes available in districts
around the state in order to run one a nonth, and make sure
students have schol arship support at the university.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 13- January 27, 2016



SENATOR HUGAE NS asked how much potential the cyber approach has
i n ANSEP

MR. SCHRCEDER said cyber approach does not fit wth ANSEFP s
nodel because ANSEP does everything in teans. He expl ained that
they have been trying cyber learning for a long tine, but
students' education is built on friendships.

8:56: 05 AM

CHAIR DUNLEAVY noted that public education is for [lifting
chal l enged individuals up. He stated that ANSEP statistics are
very convincing. He suggested that |egislators give this program
sone t hought.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY turned the neeting over to Chair Keller.

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next topic would be Al aska
Measures of Progress (AMP).

Al aska Measures of Progress (AMP) Assessnment & Accountability

CHAI R KELLER referred to the announcenent by Commi ssioner Hanl ey
that the state is abandoning the Al aska Measures of Progress
(AVWP) assessnent and will be putting out a new RFP to find a new
vendor. He commended Conmi ssioner Hanley, superintendents, and
the State Board of Education for their work on the state testing
pl an. He highlighted the inportance of the teaching profession
He pointed out that nany of the education issues have to do with
accountability and funding, but the inportant part in the
process is the kids.

He turned to the subject of federal requirenents for Al aska's
accountability shifting back to the local level and the state's
opportunity to ensure that the accountability system is
credible. He cautioned not to consider the rejection of the AW
as the end of the process.

9:01:40 AM
LI SA SKI LES PARADY, Ph.D., Executive Director, Al aska Council of
School Adm nistration (ACSA), presented information on the

Al aska Measures of Progress (AWMP). She referred to the press
rel ease stating that Depart nent of Education and Early
Devel opnment (DEED) would issue a new RFP to replace AMP for the
2016- 2017 school year. She stated that ACSA is pleased to see
this happen as there was consensus to go in this direction. She

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -14- January 27, 2016



noted that ACSA is conmitted to continue to work with DEED to do
a conprehensive review of Al aska's accountability system

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what is going to be different in a
new RFP for an assessnent based on Alaska Standards. He
guesti oned what changes ACSA and DEED woul d be | ooking for.

DR. PARADY deferred to the upconmng testifiers to answer.

9:05: 29 AM

M CHAEL JOHNSON, Ph.D., President, Alaska Council of School
Adm ni strators, Superintendent, Copper River School District,
testified during the discussion of the Alaska Measures of
Progress (AMP). He read the press rel ease regarding the decision
to nove in a new direction away fromthe AMP test. He commented
that behind the press release there were over tw years of hard
work and dedication by the Conm ssioner and his staff. He
t hanked them for their commtnent to Al aska students and for
remai ning focused on inproving student achievenent. He thanked
the superintendents, educators, and students who worked wth
DEED last spring and will again this spring to admnister AWM.
He also thanked the nenbers of the conmttees for their
countl ess hours working for Al aska students.

DR. JOHNSON rel ated that Comm ssioner Hanley also noted in the
press release that "the recent passage of the federal Every
Child Succeeds Act (ESSA) provides new flexibility for the state
in designing their assessnent system"” He goes on to say that
"Alaska needs to take full advantage of the opportunity the new
ESSA provides and time is of the essence for noving in a
direction that better serves Al aska students." Dr. Johnson said
he agrees with Comm ssioner Hanley. Rather than take the path of
| east resistance, he suggested focusing on devel opi ng education
policy that reflects the culture, the courage, and the common
sense of Al askans. He cautioned to focus on the unique flavor of
Al askan val ues that would truly inprove student achi evenent.

CHAI R KELLER opined that "local control"” refers to famlies. He
wondered if Dr. Johnson has any proposals to expand the role of
parents in a new accountability system

9:09: 00 AM

DR. JOHNSON related that the Copper River School District uses
the Measures of Academc Progress (MAP) assessnent, and he
understood that 36 other districts also use it. He said that MAP
gi ves students, teachers, and parents the information they need
to inprove student performance, and it inforns the public how

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -15- January 27, 2016



school s are doing. He suggested noving toward what districts are
al ready doing instead of trying to create something new

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON di scussed the issue of neasuring students
agai nst the Al aska Standards and pointed out that ANSEP does not
follow the Al aska Standards, but accelerates above them He
guestioned if Dr. Johnson was advocating for changing grade
| evel standards or the formand function of the assessnent.

DR. JOHNSON expl ai ned that he would al ways advocate for raising
the bar and raising the standards, however, the Al aska Standards
went through a process and a Ilot of work and does not
necessarily have to be revised in order to have an assessnent
that inforns teachers and parents how students are doing.

9:11: 26 AM

SENATOR STEVENS questioned whether a new vendor would provide
what the state is looking for. He pointed out that it is known
what the current vendor needs to correct.

CHAIR KELLER said Comm ssioner Hanley could respond to that
guestion after the superintendent testinonies were finished.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested superintendents to address
whether they want the MAP test to be wused as the state
assessnment, and whether that vendor, who applied under the
previous RFP will be considered now. He wondered if the real
crux of the mtter was that districts remained wth the MAP
i nstead of adapting to the AMP.

SENATOR HUGA NS requested to know the value of students taking
the AMP this year if the state is going to get rid of it. He
suggested that teachers will be asking this question.

9:13: 57 AM

DEENA PARAMO, Superintendent, Mat-Su Borough School District,
testified during the discussion of the Alaska Measures of
Progress (AMP). She stated that the Mit-Su District and many
others were quite dissatisfied wth AW and now the State Board
of Education has recognized AVP' s deficiencies and has nade the
decision to sever ties with it. She hoped that superintendents
woul d have input on the selection of a new assessnent. She said
the Mat-Su District believes that MAP can provide the assessnent
needed to inform parents and students.

DR. PARAMO addressed the question asked about the Al aska
St andar ds. She discussed the reasons behind needing an

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 16- January 27, 2016



assessment in order to neasure the nmastery of students' skills.
She said that MAP is a good test because it shows what students
al ready know. She pointed out that MAP is not grade-|evel
dependent. MAP was not successful in its bid because it did not
have an end-of-the-year test, a sunmmtive assessnent. She
understood that the MAP vendor - Nor t hwest Eval uati on
Association - is currently working on such a test. She stressed
that the district needs tinmely information in order to change
"what we do so that kids understand."

DR. PARAMO noted that her district inplenmented MAP el even years
ago and sone of the biggest supporters are home school famlies.
It is about keeping the district accountable and MAP does that.

9:18:22 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked whether Dr. Paranp is suggesting that
superintendents be involved in selecting a new vendor.

M5. PARAMO replied that she would like to be a part of the
"genba" or "where the value is added."” She said it is the people
in a school district who deal wth tests who nmake the
difference. She stressed that the value of including districts
woul d be shown in the classroomand will inprove education.

9:19:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COLVER requested that Dr. Paranp speak to the
val ue MAP assessnents provide to her district and the results of
using that test for eleven years.

M5. PARAMO said the district "changed the gane" by using MAP.
She related that eleven years ago, 52 percent of students
| eaving grade 3 were at grade level. Al so, nmany students at
grade 2 had already mastered grade 2 standards. MAP and ot her
assessnments identified where students were currently at and
added value to the system by allow ng students to work at their
current level. Accelerated courses have been noved to |ower
cl asses and, currently, about 80 percent of students |eave third
grade on grade level. Also, MAP has end-of-course tests that
students can take when they are ready and can test out of
courses. Education is nore individualized now.

9:23:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciated that information. He
pointed out that the state is required to use a summtive
assessnment, but districts are working on a different focus for
student learning. He asked how to make a sunmative assessnent
key to what Alaska wants in education, instead of measuring

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -17- January 27, 2016



grade-1l evel Al aska Standards. He asked if there is an assessnent
that changes the perspective of the Alaska Standards to reflect
student grow h.

DR. PARAMO opined that the answer lies in the integrity of
Al aska's education |eaders. She explained that in her district,
t he school - based assessnments (SBA' s) were |ooked at "as a fl oor,
not a ceiling." The standards were not used just to neet the
SBA's. She stressed that schools should be |ooking for whether
students require renedial classes. She suggested that standards
provi de informati on about what kids need to know, but educators
need to | ook beyond standards for success, in order to keep
education in balance. She agreed there is a need for an
assessnment that shows mastery of grade-level skills, Dbut
educators nust also show that Kkids are growing in their
| ear ni ng. She noted that AMP was supposed to create a dynamc
test in five years, but students don't have tine to wait.

9:27:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted there are 53 districts in the state
that have grade-level standards and who are not required to
address grade |evel growh. The summative test wll only give
m ni mum data on neeting the Al aska Standards. He asked if Dr.
Paranb is suggesting a new test to push the state to have a
grom h nodel for all districts, as well as having a summtive
assessnent.

M5. PARAMO stated that MAP assessnments will do both; continue
with the growth nodel and have a summative assessnent that woul d
neet state standards. She stressed the integrity and invol venment
of the whole state system in this process. She concluded that
the key to learning is determ ning what each student needs to do
next .

CHAIR KELLER said he considers the federal regulations a
detrinment to Al aska districts.

9:30: 18 AM

CHRI'S REITAN, Superintendent, Galena City School District,
testified during the discussion of the Alaska Measures of
Progress (AW). He said he agrees with Dr. Parano and Dr.
Johnson. He pointed out that there are no superintendents in
Al aska that are afraid of student assessnent. He nmintained that
the state needs both formative and summative assessnents in
order to measure student growh and strengths and weaknesses of
st andar ds.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 18- January 27, 2016



MR. REITAN stated that the AMP inplenmentation went well, the
testing process went snoothly, but the data provided after
testing was not useful for anyone. He requested a strong, robust
assessment nodel, easy to access, and that provides both
formati ve and summative information.

9:33: 37 AM

SUE JOHNSON, Superintendent, Kuspuk School District, testified
during the discussion of the Al aska Measures of Progress (AMP).
She said Al aska educators believe in assessnent. She requested a
better summative assessnent tool that is aligned with the state
standards and has neaningful data. She said AMP provided no
information about instruction direction. She spoke of tine
wast ed taki ng AMP and support for MAP.

9:37: 03 AM

SENATOR STEVENS commented that the goal is to inprove
achievement no matter the size of the district. He asked if
there were any differences due to the size of the Kuspuk
District.

M5. JOHNSON related that her district has 340 students wthin
120 mles, and the requirenments of Kuskpuk's students and
teachers are no different than students from large districts.
She noted her district uses Common Core standards and they want
the sane test results as all other schools in Al aska do. She
described a site with 13 students K - 10 and one teacher, with a
goal for all students to be successful.

9: 39: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that MAP does not have a
sumative test. He asked if Kuspuk needs formative and summative
tests.

M5. JOHNSON said both are used three tines a year. They are
looking for a sunmative test which would align with their
benchmark tests and would provide information on how to nove
students to the next level. AMP does not do that, but MAP woul d.
She concluded that they are working for their students to exceed
t he m ni num st andar ds.

9:41: 56 AM

KEVI N SHI PLEY, Superintendent, Kake School District, testified
during the discussion of the Al aska Measures of Progress (AW).
He noted that in October he penned a letter signed by 18
superintendents expressing concern with AWP. The letter stated
that when ESSA is reauthorized, the superintendents would

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -19- January 27, 2016



encourage the State Board of Education to make drastic changes
to the current accountability structure. The departnent,
superintendents, educators, business people, and parents, should
help to <create a nore vibrant, long-term and effective
integrated system of st andar ds, curricul um i nstruction,
eval uation, and review. He nade suggestions as to how the system
coul d be i nproved.

MR. SHI PLEY said the passage of ESSA allows the state to provide
a system descri bed above and set out in the 2012 Al aska Plan. He
commended the Conm ssioner for his |eadership and his decision
to change from AWP, but he stressed that changing to another
test does not solve the problem only addresses the synptons. He
suggested naking a system c approach and integrating conponents
fromthe |ast process used to choose a test.

He opined that Conm ssioner Hanley had it right in his 2012
introduction to the Alaska Educational Plan when he stated,
"What is Alaska's vision for its schools and students? Wat are
our goals? Wat attributes and skills do we want high school
graduates to possess? Wiat actions will neet these goals and
make this vision a reality? In short, the vision and goals of in
Al aska Educational Plan are our destination. The actions are the
road map. Knowi ng where we want to go, we can determne if our
expendi tures of noney and effort are efficiently and effectively
getting us there. The public having a clear vision for our
schools and students, can neasure performance against the
goal s. "

He concluded that the state can create a system to allow Al aska
to be a | eader in academ c achievenent for all Al aska children

9:47: 20 AM

DAVE HERBERT, Superintendent, St. Mary's  School District,
testified during the discussion of the Alaska Measures of
Progress (AWMP). He said his district and community believe in
accountability and has accepted the <challenge to provide
instruction aligned to nore rigorous standards, and AMP does not
provide the necessary data to inform instruction or help
students inprove their academ c achi evenent. He said he does not
understand how the state could spend the noney, human resources,
and tinme on a test that does not work. He suggested the new test

provi de useful data for schools, parents, teachers, and
students.
9:50: 13 AM

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 20- January 27, 2016



BOB CRUMLEY, Superintendent, Chugach School District, testified
during the discussion of the Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).
He voiced disappointnent in the AMP test and applauded the
Board, Commi ssioner, and departnent for their conviction for
raising the bar for Alaska students and working in their best
interests. He shared a previous district plan to achi eve student
success by developing their own tests to ensure that | earning,
not tinme, was the constant. He called the state exans secondary
to their own tests. He encour aged DEED to i ncl ude
superintendents and district test coordinators when rmaking
deci sions on the next RFP for a new test.

9:55: 02 AM

ED GRAFF, Superintendent, Anchorage School District, testified
during the discussion of the Al aska Measures of Progress (AMP).
He suggested that the new test provide information about what
students individually already know based on the standards,
denonstrates an effective use of resources, provides useful
reports rel at ed to classroom instruction and par ent
understanding, and that can be used throughout the state and
nation. He said his district supports nore rigorous standards

acconpani ed by high expectations and accountability. He spoke of
the inmportance of training and of inplenmentation support for
assessnment practices, and adequate financing. He wanted to
ensure that the tine used for assessnments is valuable, as is the
need to inform parents about their students' progress. He shared
that his district has goals for student academc growh and
proficiency, and having neaningful reports helps the district
align and allocate its resources

9:58:40 AM
SENATOR STEVENS said he has serious concerns about having enough
time to get a new assessnent in place for 2017

MR. GRAFF agreed that it 1is extrenmely time consumng and
requires the involvenent of many stakehol ders. He suggested that
t he process nust start now and have a plan B

10: 01: 02 AM

STEWART MCDONALD, Superintendent, Kodiak |sland Borough School
testified during the discussion of the Alaska Measures of
Progress (AMP). He said there are 54 districts in A aska nmade up
of diverse populations and sizes. It is inportant to take tine
to understand the issue. He terned the state assessnent "a
single tool in the tool box." He spoke of the goal to have
students coll ege-and-career ready. He highlighted the prograns
in Akiak. He stated that Alaska needs an assessnent that

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -21- January 27, 2016



includes formative assessnents. He concluded that the test wll
be only a piece of the puzzle and the state needs tine to choose
a new one. He described the role of superintendents as partners
wi th corporations.

10: 10: 10 AM

DAVI D  NEES, representing hinself, testified during the
di scussion of the Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP). He stressed
the need to have a summative test as required by ESSA, and said
MAP is a formative test and not a replacenment for AMP.

10: 11: 11 AM
At ease

10: 11: 38 AM

M KE HANLEY, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opmrent (DEED), testified during the discussion of the
Al aska Measures of Progress (AWP).

10: 12: 04 AM

SENATOR STEVENS cautioned that adequate tinme be taken to decide
on a new test. He wondered how to deal wth the issue of
teachers and students not valuing the AW test which is to be
given this April

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY said the decision to not continue with AW
caused a lot of anxiety. Mving forward with AMP was not
feasi bl e considering the I oss of confidence in doing so from all
of the stakeholders. This led to the decision to seek a new path
and go as fast as possible to get sonething in place for 2016-
17, but it wll be a challenge. He said they need to take steps
forward in a feasible and intentional way, and include
st akehol ders.

SENATOR STEVENS thought that a year from now the state may be
unhappy with the new test if the process is not done right. He
said "fast" is not necessarily right.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY agreed. He said we need to nove together in
a way that is right and nekes sense. He noted there are
significant changes in the new contract. For the previous RFP,
st akehol ders requested an Al askan-nmade test that would address
the diversity in the state. That was one of the strengths of AW
and there were no concerns about the test contents. He stated
that MAP is an off-the-shelf assessnent, with no Al askan i nput,
aligned to a national set of standards. He stressed the
necessity of having a conversation about that.

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES -22- January 27, 2016



10: 16: 15 AM
CHAIR KELLER said he appreciates Comm ssi oner Hanl ey' s
| eader shi p.

10: 16: 26 AM
REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ congratul ated the Comm ssioner for the
courage to change. She asked how much the AMP contract cost.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY said it cost $25 mllion; $5 mllion each of
five years.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ requested to see the next proposal in
witing. She agreed it was a short tinefrane.

10: 18: 04 AM
CHAI R KELLER t hanked the presenters.

10: 18: 11 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Keller adjourned the Joint House and Senate Standing
Conmittees at 10:18 a.m

JT. S/H EDC COW TTEES - 23- January 27, 2016



